
 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

1 
 

 
GWAC Members 
 
Ron Bernstein, GWAC Chair and President 
RBCG, LLC 

Kay Aikin, Founder, CPO, Dynamic 
Grid/Introspective Systems 

Ron Ambrosio, Independent Energy 
Transformation Professional 

Andrew Bordine, VP Energy Mkts & Innovation, 
Anterix 

Ron Cunningham, IT Enterprise Architect, 
American Electric Power 

Paul DeMartini, Managing Partner, Newport 
Consulting 

Lorenzo Kristov, Principal, Electric System 
Policy, Structure, Market Design 

Ahlmahz Negash, Sr. Power Analyst, Tacoma 
Power  

Farrokh Rahimi, Senior Vice President, Open 
Access Technology International, Inc 

Aaron Snyder, Dir. of Grid Tech. Consulting, 
EnerNex  

Leonard Tillman, Partner, Balch & Bingham, LLP 

 

 

GWAC Associates & Emeritus 

Rahul Bahadur, VMWare, Inc. 

Marc Costa, the Energy Coalition 

Ken Wacks, Home, Building & Utility Systems 

 

GWAC Friends 

 

Daniel Boff, PNNL 

Toby Considine 

Anthony James 

David Katz 

Jaime Kolln, PNNL 

James Orenstein 

Steve Widergren, PNNL 

David Wollman, NIST 

 

GWAC Members and Assoc. not present 

David Forfia, Principal Consultant, Utilicast 

Jeff Morris, Schneider Electric 

Mark Paterson, Managing Director, Lead 
Systems Architect, Strategen 

 

PNNL Support 

Susan McGuire, GWAC Coordinator 

Ron Melton, Acting PNNL Administrator



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

2 
 

GWAC Administrative Business 

 

Ron Bernstein asked for a motion to approve the meeting minutes for September and October.  Susie 
McGuire noted that Ken Wacks has submitted grammatical changes to his liaison reports for both sets 
and the changes have been made. Kay Aikin gave the motion to approve, and Ron Ambrosio seconded 
the motion.  The minutes were approved with no objections. 

Ron Bernstein requested to hold off on approving the November minutes next month to allow more 
time for review. 

Ron Melton noted that GWAC member Gerald Gray has requested to move to emeritus. All other GWAC 
members with expiring terms wish to continue on. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

3 
 

 

David Wollman gave a NIST update: "Interoperability is foundational to the development of more 
inclusive grid institutions." That was the key point made by NIST's Cheyney O’Fallon and Avi Gopstein in 
their article, Reducing Barriers to Entry and Hedging Against Obsolescence With Smart Grid 
Interoperability in Competition Policy International, November 2022. As the article's title indicates, 
increased smart grid interoperability can dissolve barriers to entry for new participants, contribute to 
creating value for the electric grid, and prevent obsolescence from eroding gains as technologies rapidly 
evolve. 

Ron Melton gave an overview of the 2023 GWAC new member selection process: 

 

 

https://www.competitionpolicyinternational.com/reducing-barriers-to-entry-and-hedging-against-obsolescence-with-smart-grid-interoperability/
https://www.competitionpolicyinternational.com/reducing-barriers-to-entry-and-hedging-against-obsolescence-with-smart-grid-interoperability/


 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

4 
 

 

Jaime Kolln noted that Ron Bernstein will be presenting with Jaime at the PES Grid Edge tech meeting. 
Ken Wacks will attend also. 

 

Guest Presentation 

Ron Melton welcomed Steve Widergren and Daniel Boff, PNNL who will present a summary of the 
survey they conducted which is now concluded. 

Steve Widergren said PNNL has been collaborating for some time with TNO in the Netherlands on TE 
issues and with the TE International Community which is a group of 25 to 30 people. They held a series 
of workshops.  TNO also worked with a technical university in the Netherlands and with their energy 
ministry and produced some interviews and surveys in the EU and North America. 

He said they hope to publish a paper on this work with TNO.  Dan Boff, PNNL will present today. 

Daniel Boff, PNNL gave a summary of the survey that was done on the Transactive Energy Systems 
project. 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

5 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

6 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

7 
 

 

More than 50 % of projects wanted 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

8 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

9 
 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

10 
 

 

 

Ron Melton asked about the architectures used in the systems that they studied. 

Dan Boff replied that LO3 or OPUS One platforms were the main platforms being used. This information 
came up in the interview process. 

Ron M. said he was really interested in the structure of their approach such as centralized or distributed.  
He asked if it was distributed what is the structure of the distributed functionality and what interactions 
take place? 

Dan said that it is a market design question such as is the device communicating and how is the market 
clearing? Also, who is participating? 

Steve Widergren added that there is a lot of dimensions to Ron’s question. They had some technologists 
that they interviewed who really understood the platforms and how they are organized.  

He said automation could be located in the cloud or back at central processors, but the architecture 
could be pushed to devices and things like that.  He said a designer needs to have flexibility as to how 
they think the business can run.  He said he thought most projects did meet some level of distributed 
decision making that are fundamental to a transactive approach. 

Ron M. also asked to what extent was there alignment and direct involvement using the transactive 
system to achieve utility operational objectives versus some other system? Where the purpose was 
independent of the utility? 

Steve replied that the answer is very project specific. Some were aligned around specific use case and 
the Netherlands is a good example. But we have an issue with congestion. Some large customers are 
somewhat prepared to move load around because of the congestion and they are going to design the 
program with that in mind and actually are doing a very good job of solving those system utility system 
problems.  

But others were just trying transactive to see if it works and then find a use for it. So, the answer is it 
varied based on how the groups were positioning themselves in the market. Steve felt that more of 
them were in the “let’s try it and find a use for it” group.  

Ron Ambrosio asked of the projects that were surveyed, how much of a spilt was there between those 
that viewed transactive as a method of creating a distributed energy market versus those that really see 
it as an interoperability and loosely coupled architecture approach, regardless of whether there are 
markets like explicit markets that transactive bids are going into, such as what we did with the 
Northwest demo project where there weren’t any real markets per se. It was more peer-to-peer 
negotiation. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

11 
 

Dan said they were expecting more representation of the sort of bilateral arrangements that they 
ultimately got. The most common set up was a more centralized double auction type approach. He felt 
that was largely because that is what most in the utility sector are familiar with. 

Ron A. asked if they are mapping transactive to that? 

Daniel replied that yes, it’s likely the mode but then not necessarily.  Many framed their projects as 
being a bit more of peer-to-peer than they actually ended up being. 

He continued that on the utility side there were many people negotiating directly with each other and 
then when follow up questions were asked, and the answer is no they are submitting bids and doing 
some matching there, but it’s not a true peer-to-peer system. 

Marc Costa put links in the chat that are relevant to today’s GWAC presentation topic 

Publication by Renewable Energy – Science Direct: 
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0960148122005055?via%3Dihub 
 
IEEE Explore article: 
https://ieeexplore.ieee.org/document/9535547 
 
MDPI article: 
https://www.mdpi.com/1996-1073/12/24/4708 
 
Marc also said that Powerledger has a couple dozen publications that he will forward if anyone is 
interested which focuses on a few EU countries and Australia. 
 

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0960148122005055?via%3Dihub
https://ieeexplore.ieee.org/document/9535547
https://www.mdpi.com/1996-1073/12/24/4708


 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

12 
 

 
 
 
GWAC Work Products Matrix 
 
Matrix Action: Ron Bernstein asked Susie to remove the TESC2022 column for next month. (done) 
 
Kay Aikin reported on the GWAC Blog committee that they just met yesterday. Attendance was a bit 
light but productive. They are planning connect to the work to Next Big Thing for the F2F meeting.  They 
are thinking about titles and ways to contribute.  
 
 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

13 
 

 
 
Ron Bernstein mentioned the recent email announcements that have gone out about the next GWAC 
Face to Face.  Tuesday, Feb. 7 will be a GWAC seminar/workshop that AHR attendees can participate in, 
and he recalled that when GWAC presented at the AHR in Orlando in Feb. 2020 the attendance was very 
good. 
 
On Wednesday, Feb. 8 GWAC will have a full day Face-to-Face meeting, and we are expecting to have a 
quorum of seven in spite of some schedule conflicts. AHR attendees will be invited to participate in that 
as well. 
 
On GWAC history slide – the latest blog post has been added 
 
Seemita Pal, PNNL, is in India right now and couldn’t update the grid architecture white paper slide. If 
there are any suggestions for the cover graphic, please email Seemita your ideas. 
 
Lorenzo Kristov, Chair of the Grid Architecture for Regulators work group said he is drafting an outline of 
the final paper and adding material to the purpose statement and the case studies outline. Each team 
member will add a case study, and all of those will have a comparable format.  He will get the outline 
out before the end of the year and then the team will meet to discuss. 
 
Lorenzo and the group are interested in feedback on this task from GWAC, please send your ideas to 
Lorenzo. 
 
Lorenzo noted that he will not be at the Atlanta GWAC Face to Face so the work group will not be 
presenting at that meeting. 
 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

14 
 

 
 
 
 
Ron Melton noted that the Next Big Thing group met last week to discuss how to approach this topic 
and how to create an outline for this work. We know that the future is fundamentally different from 
today. The problem is getting people to realize this.  Paul had noted today how some regional groups 
are not really recognizing this in their long-term planning. We will also look at strategic gaps and how to 
identify them and to communicate the gaps in our communications. Mark Paterson has presented an 
interesting narrative about this by telling the anti-story which is his approach.  
 
Ron B. suggested GWAC think in incremental steps – 5 years, 10 years, 50 years. He suggested an 
assessment phase and then look at the next steps.  He sees it as being more than one bridge needed to 
the future and added that we can’t take on everything in one shot, we have to break it into increments. 
 
Ron M. replied to Ken Wacks that we are framing the challenge so we can put the material together for 
the seminar at AHR. We want to engage participants in a discussion as a starting point. Ron said 
fundamental changes are required, it won’t be business as usual. 
 
Ron M. asked Paul DeMartini about the three S curves for capability. 
 
Paul said originally there was one curve and then as we thought about a more distributed system more 
curves came along. Two years ago, we realized the current platform won’t get us there.  We need to 
think in terms of a technology S curve and then business and regulatory – similar to the GWAC stack. We 
need to rethink all of it – there is a 2nd platform that gets developed.  He added that we are now looking 
to 2040 and beyond, the thinking has evolved since 2010. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

15 
 

 
He said there is something called “pre-mortem” where you look at a future state – such as domestically 
or globally and you look at where the failure points were.  And you ask if there are things that you could 
have done to mitigate these.  If we help people understand things will likely fail to shape design and 
planning. 
 
Lorenzo said he had been talking with Mark Paterson and said when you look at the bridge construction 
meeting, you know what the other side looks like. But with this – how do we know what we are aiming 
for and what we want to build back from? 
 
Ron B. added that there is what we know today and what we think we need. It will be a moving target. 
We have to start from what we know and then identify the puzzle pieces and gaps. 
 
Kay A. said that does lead to incrementalism.  For certain performance and equipment aspects – if we 
don’t plan for it the premortem is that the lights aren’t on – like a dystopian movie of everyone being 
back in the dark ages cooking over an open fire because the system falls apart. 
 
Paul DeMartini cautioned that it may not be that bad.  He noted intermediate goal of 2030 with a 70% 
reduction of decarbonization of the electric structure in Hawaii. He asked in the current plans what will 
it take to achieve that, and do we have the land resources, and do we have the community support. If 
not, what are the other options? What are the alternatives? What can we do instead of an incremental 
approach? 
 
Ron M. said that GWAC won’t say what the future will look like other than broad brush strokes.  With 
Power Systems Architecture – what does the system need to be to meet decarbonization goals?  The 
community can work back from set goals.  
 
Lorenzo Kristov agreed and said we need to think about goals, and we should include energy equity. He 
added that he has a real concern that many people will be left out of the DER revolution.  
 
Chat comment: 

 
US DOE EERE link to EAS-E Prize for Home Electrification 
 
Liaison Reports 
 
David Wollman with NIST has already presented his update at the beginning of the meeting since he had 
to leave early. 
 
ISO/IEC - Ken Wacks said that mid-December is the period of time between meetings and group 
members are busy writing standards. Ken noted a standard that he is leading called the Energy 

Commented [MSG(1]:  

https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/USEERE/bulletins/33d6428


 
Meeting Minutes  

Dec. 14, 2022 

16 
 

Management Agent, which provides energy management for consumers using equipment in homes and 
buildings. It is a base level standard that forms the foundation for all the work we’re doing in energy 
management. 
 
IREC – Ken Wacks noted that the next Customer Grid Edge meeting has been rescheduled for Thursday, 
December 22.  The guest speaker will be someone who has been a program director for microgrids and 
Puerto Rico recovery from the effects of the recent major hurricane. The meeting is open to the public.  
Anyone interested in attending can contact Ken Wacks for more information. 

 
Chat information about Registering for the 2023 AHR Expo: 
 

 
 
Ron Bernstein thanked today’s speakers for their presentation to the GWAC and he adjourned the 
meeting. 
 
 

 


	GWAC Members
	GWAC Members and Assoc. not present
	PNNL Support

